2019-2020 UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA

April 17, 2020
9:30 - 11:30 A.M.

P&A SENATE MINUTES: No. 4

The third meeting of the P&A Senate for 2019-20 was convened via Zoom on Friday, April 17,
2020, at 9:30 a.m. Fifty-eight senators and 16 alternates signed the roll as present. Chair Noelle
Noonan presided.

1. Welcome and Introductions

Chair Noelle Noonan called the meeting to order and welcomed P&A Senate members. She then
invited members to spend a few minutes sharing how their working lives have changed during
the COVID-19 pandemic in order to continue building intentional professional working
relationships. She also outlined guidelines to help the online meeting run as smoothly as
possible.

2. P&A Chair and Chair-elect Reports

Erin Heath, chair-elect, P&A Senate and P&A Consultative Committee (PACC) began by saying
that the work on the mission and vision statements as well as possible subcommittee
restructuring is on hold while senate leadership and members respond to the new environment
that the COVID-19 pandemic presents. She added that PACC members have shared ideas around
the possibilities of combining subcommittees and forming new subcommittees (such as a
technology subcommittee).

Next, Noonan encouraged senate members to consider moving into P&A Senate leadership roles
by submitting their nominations for subcommittee chairs or co-chairs. She said it may not be a
time that most people are thinking about expanding their workload, but it is an especially
important time to amplify the voices and concerns of P&A constituents systemwide.

Noonan then recapped points from the April 9, 2020, PACC meeting with President Joan Gabel.
She said President Gabel expressed a firm commitment to keeping employees working to the
fullest extent possible and maintaining health care benefits for employees. Noonan added that
they had learned that P&A staff on continuous appointments are eligible for promotional
increases this year.

Adolfo Carrillo Cabello asked if continuous appointments are the same as renewable
appointments, and Noonan explained that they are not. Noonan invited Shannon Farrell to further
explain continuous appointments. Farrell said the Libraries, Extension, and relatively few other
departments, have a process similar to tenure, which requires that staff meet certain criteria over
a period of six years with annual evaluations. Farrell explained that the reason that question came
up with President Gabel was because faculty are eligible for promotional increases, even during
the hiring and wage-increase freeze, and the Benefits and Compensation Subcommittee wanted



to confirm that P&4 staff on the continuous appointment track were afforded the same
opportunity.

3. Subcommittee Reports
Benefits & Compensation
Emily Becher, co-chair, shared that the subcommittee has heard many concerns from employees
that generally fall into three categories:
e Financial conditions of the University and P&A staff non-renewals
e Pay freezes
e Tension around President Gabel’s messaging about grace and flexibility versus
messaging from the unit level regarding increased workload due to crisis response
conditions

She added that she and co-chair Scott Creer are in consultation with Noonan and Heath around
these issues and will report updates as soon as possible.

Communications Subcommittee

Tracey Hammell, chair, shared that a number of P&A staff and the work they are doing in
response to the COVID-19 crisis were highlighted in the March 2020 P&A newsletter. She
encouraged senate members to continue reporting to the Communications Subcommittee the
ways in which P&A staff are responding to the emergency situation so that they, too, can be
recognized. She next reminded senate members to proactively distribute communications to their
constituents as employees are extremely interested in receiving timely updates as situations
change rapidly. Lastly, Hammell said, the subcommittee will continue working through the
summer months in order to monitor events and share updates with constituents.

Outreach Subcommittee

Co-chair Ben Anderson said that P&A elections for 2020-21 are currently in process
systemwide. Subcommittee members are reviewing and updating orientation materials for new
senators and alternates. Anderson said discussions are also taking place as to the best way to
maintain a P&A staff presence at new employee welcome events on all system campuses as the
future of large gatherings is uncertain at this time.

Professional Development & Recognition
Lindsey Konerza, co-chair, shared the following updates:
e The April 2020 Seminar Series event was canceled in light of current events
o The subcommittee is lining up speakers for fall events
e The subcommittee is reviewing nine applications for the P&A Outstanding Unit Award
and the winning unit will be announced at the May 2020 senate meeting.

4. Civil Service Senate Report

Terry Beseman, chair-elect, Civil Service Senate and Civil Service Consultative Committee
(CSCC), said that CSCC leadership met with Ken Horstman, interim vice president, Office of
Human Resources (OHR), to discuss the following:



e Implementation and communication of the new General Provisions for Sick Leave and
Bereavement Leave (see page 19 in the Civil Service Employment Rules)

e Suggested changes to the Vacation Donation Program (see page 21 of the Civil Service
Employment Rules);

e Implementation and communication of the change to Civil Service Employment Rules
which allows employees to use sick time for unscheduled child care needs (see page 20).

Beseman next shared that Missy Juliette, finance professional, College of Liberal Arts Fiscal
Administration, was elected to the position of CSCC chair-elect for the 2020-21 academic year.

Beseman added that with Patti Dion’s reassignment in the Office of Human Resources, the
CSCC would now hold its monthly meetings with Mary Rohman Kuhl, interim senior director,
Total Compensation, and Mark Sevenich, manager, employee relations, OHR.

Beseman next said that given the current climate, some units with civil service employees are
modifying and condensing their performance review process. Noonan invited Beseman to
elaborate as she said she has fielded a number of questions from P&A employees regarding
performance reviews. Beseman explained that in his unit the recommendation has been to be
succinct, use bullet points rather than long narratives, and be cognizant of causing as little stress
as possible during the process.

5. Student Senate Report
Ryan Machtmes, vice chair, Student Senate/Student Senate Consultative Committee, provided
the following written report to the senate:

e Student Senate last convened on February 27, 2020. In my prior briefing, I provided
details about this meeting. Due to the various distancing orders and our University’s
response to the global pandemic, as well as safety concerns, the April 2, 2020, meeting of
the Student Senate was canceled via unanimous vote of the Student Senate Consultative
Committee. The Student Senate remains engaged on important matters for students, and
the Student Senate Consultative Committee remains committed to the work of the day.
During these past weeks, SSCC Chair Amy Ma organized a summative document of
updates from the various RSGAs (Recognized Student Governance Associations) and
emailed this document to all Student Senators. SSCC leaders have also participated in
public virtual interview sessions with candidates for the position of Chief Health Officer
for the University, leadership fora with President Gabel, and remained attentive to the
decisions and needs of University leaders and Student Senate members in this
challenging and unprecedented time.

e The next meeting of the SSCC is scheduled for April 17, 2020. During this meeting, the
SSCC will discuss planning for the next subsequent meeting of the Student Senate and a
proposed omnibus resolution on issues relevant to the safety of students throughout the
system. The next meeting of the Student Senate is scheduled to occur on April 23, 2020.
During this meeting, the Student Senate will welcome new Senators and elect SSCC
leadership for the coming year. Requests for further information/clarification may be
directed toward SSCC Vice Chair Ryan Machtmes (macht012@umn.edu).


https://humanresources.umn.edu/sites/humanresources.umn.edu/files/civil_service_employment_rules_2020-02-13.pdf
https://humanresources.umn.edu/sites/humanresources.umn.edu/files/civil_service_employment_rules_2020-02-13.pdf
https://humanresources.umn.edu/sites/humanresources.umn.edu/files/civil_service_employment_rules_2020-02-13.pdf
https://humanresources.umn.edu/sites/humanresources.umn.edu/files/civil_service_employment_rules_2020-02-13.pdf
mailto:macht012@umn.edu

6. President’s Initiative to Prevent Sexual Misconduct Update

Ann Hagen, member of the President’s Initiative to Prevent Sexual Misconduct (PIPSM)
Advisory Committee and P&A senator from the School of Dentistry, provided a brief update on
the work of the advisory committee thus far this year:

e Reviewed a draft tool for assessing organizational climate culture that may be used at the
department or unit level; reviewed the tool a second time; the tool has not yet been
released for use.

e Reviewed a proposed public awareness campaign, similar to the “It Ends Here”
campaign, aimed toward faculty and staff, and the advisory committee voted against
continuing that project.

e The University has added language to the online employee application called
SkillSurvey, which some units use to check job candidates’ references. The added
language reads: “While employed with your organization was the candidate found to
have engaged in sexual harassment or assault, financial impropriety, workplace violence,
or other serious misconduct or were such allegations made and unresolved prior to the
employee’s departure?”” This new language is intended to combat what is known as “pass
the harasser,” which refers to allowing a candidate who has committed or been accused
of sexual misconduct at one place of employment to move on to another place of
employment without their actions or the accusation of such actions being part of their
employment record.

e Reviewed the steps of the reporting process when the petitioner is a student on campus in
order to create a flowchart to better explain how the process works. The advisory
committee will engage in the same type of review process for instances when the
petitioner is a faculty or staff member.

e Hagen added that PIPSM will be introducing job application questions to ascertain
whether or not an applicant has a previous history of misconduct, and will be asking
recommenders to answer. Hagen was asked where one could find the form/ questionnaire
with the new language, and she advised contacting local HR representatives. When asked
how to ensure that people answer honestly, Hagen said there is no way to assure that
people are answering honestly or not, but background checks may be helpful in this area.
One of the bigger questions being considered by the advisory committee is when, in the
interview process, should the question be asked. Hagen noted that in working with the
Office of General Counsel (OGC), the directive at this time is that the recommender may
be asked the question, but not the candidate.

Christine Bakke raised the question of a qualified applicant for a position being overlooked when
there is a “friend hire” that occurs. She said she does consider this a form of harassment, and
something for PIPSM to consider, as it prohibits career advancement when a less qualified
applicant is awarded the position. Noonan agreed that this is a valid issue, and one that needs to
be addressed systemwide. Benefits and Compensation co-chair Creer said he would follow up
with Bakke regarding this issue. In the interest of time, Noonan asked that the senate move onto
the next agenda item.


https://president.umn.edu/initiatives/presidents-initiative-prevent-sexual-misconduct

6. 27 Pay Period Question and Answer Session

Amy Kucera, senior leader, OHR, began with an overview of the occurrence of 27 pay periods in
fiscal year 2021, and how and why it happens with bi-weekly payroll schedules, which the
University uses. OHR has created a 27th Pay Date Frequently Asked Questions page on the OHR
website. Noonan then asked Shannon Farrell to share with Kucera and Ken Horstman, interim
vice president, OHR, questions that the 27 Pay Period working group of the Benefits and
Compensation Subcommittee gathered from constituents.

Farrell explained that the working group gathered questions and concerns from constituents and
grouped them thematically into the following overarching concerns. Following are each of the
six questions with responses from Horstman and Kucera.

1.

OHR was able to set up a fund ensuring civil service, labor represented, and student
employees will be paid for the 27th pay period at normal rates. Why wasn’t a
similar fund set up for salaried employees?

Kucera said that the process being used for this 27 pay period occurrence was set up 11
years ago, and the past decision is currently being implemented.

Why did the University decide to divide annual salaries by 27 pay periods and what
data did they use to make this determination?

Horstman explained that salaried employees have a contract that states they will be paid a
specific amount during the course of the contract year, and that amount is not reduced in
any way during a year with 27 pay periods. The full contract amount will be paid.

The last time the 27th pay period occurred there was more advance notice, it was
very public, it was covered by the media, and programs were in place for employee
assistance. This year, employees are just now finding out the full impact and
reduction in their paychecks with very little time to adjust their family financial
plans. Given the current financial picture of the University, what can be done to
help this group of employees?

Horstman said even though there was consultation with the Faculty Consultative
Committee (FCC) and PACC in December of 2019, prior to sending the 27 pay period
communications systemwide, he agreed that the communications should have been
distributed earlier. Horstman added that President Gabel’s desire to “keep employees
whole” and come out of the pandemic with a capable and high-performing workforce is
an important principal leading administration through financial planning taking place in
light of COVID-19.

The P&A senate acknowledges that the financial situation for the University is
bleak. If further cuts are necessary, can the administration acknowledge that this
3.85% per paycheck reduction will be significant for some employees if additional
measures such as no merit increases, salary freezes, and furloughs are also layered
on?

Horstman said he understands and acknowledges the question, and he believes many
options will be considered for how payroll will work in fiscal year 2021.


https://humanresources.umn.edu/pay-and-taxes/27pd-faq

5. In past contracts, the University stipulated that 12 month appointments did not
need to be exactly 365 days long as they were equivalent to 52 work weeks, and this
was the same for all employee groups. This year 12 month salaried employees are
treated differently than other employee groups and are expected to work for 54
weeks on what was previously a 52 week salary. Why is there a discrepancy and
how is this equitable?

Kucera said all calendars that are used in calculating payroll are posted on the OHR
payroll site. There is a difference between the fiscal year and what the University calls
the appointment year or payroll year, Kucera explained. Work that is completed from
June 8, 2020, through June 21, 2020, will be paid on July 1, 2020, which means it is
technically part of payroll for fiscal year 2021.

6. The University of Minnesota’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). As per the GASB, the University is on an
accrual basis, not cash. Our federal sponsored funds include pay periods based on
days worked in its reports. Why doesn’t the University accrue those same pay
periods in its reports? For example, June 2020 federal financial reports include
6/8/20 — 6/21/20, plus 6/22 - 6/30/20. Those same pay periods are in the FY21 annual
report at UMN. Horstman said he would get a more technical answer than either he or
Kucera could provide at this time and make that available.

Farrell then said P&A employees believe they are working 80 extra hours in this fiscal year 2021
pay cycle and asked Kucera how many weeks worked are in fiscal year 2021. Kucera said the
payroll/appointment calendar runs from 6/8/2020 through 6/20/2021.

Farrell then stated, “By my math, that's 54 weeks". Kucera said, “Correct." Kucera then said
fiscal year 2021 includes the two weeks from June 8 through June 20, 2020, which will be paid
on the first day (July 1, 2021) of the fiscal year 2021. The reason for the extra pay period, Kucera
explained, is because those two weeks of work are conducted prior to July 1, which is the first
pay date of fiscal year 2021. Because the University pays in arrears, those two “extra” June of
2020 weeks will appear to be paid in fiscal 2021.

Farrell asked why there is a discrepancy among employee groups as to the number of weeks
worked. Kucera explained that there are pros and cons with each of the different employee
groups at the University. Faculty and P&A employees, she said, are on an annual contract, and
everyone in those employee groups will be paid their full contract amount.

Senate members continued to ask questions and grapple with the subject, and Kucera explained
OHR’s point of view and process in a number of different ways in order to help senate members
comprehend the situation. She reiterated that the P&A employee class is paid on a contract basis,
not an hourly one. Farrell said while she understood Horstman’s and Kucera’s answers, she did
not feel she had a clear and concise answer to give to her constituents. Kucera suggested the



clearest answer is that faculty and P&A staff are paid on a contract basis, and the number of days
in a contract year can vary from year to year.

Farrell raised another question that was asked in Zoom chat: “Does OHR have any comparisons
with how the University’s peer institutions deal with years in which there are 27 biweekly pay
periods?” Kucera said yes, the University has benchmarked against 17 institutions and would use
the information in preparing for the next occurrence of 27 pay periods in a fiscal year. A robust
discussion followed regarding the pros and cons of bimonthly pay frequency. Kucera said
bimonthly payments, along with other payroll frequencies, is something that OHR is keeping in
its sights moving forward.

Farrell shared this question from a senator using the Zoom chat feature: “Are our retirement
contributions going to be adjusted accordingly for 27 verus 26 weeks to equal our annual
contribution amount”? Horstman explained that the total percentage (of salary) that an employee
has chosen to contribute to their plan will remain the same. The amount contributed per
paycheck, however, will be slightly smaller, as it is based on the paycheck total.

Farrell then asked for clarification as to how it would work for voluntary contributions to
retirement. Horstman said employees would continue to see the same dollar amount deducted
from each paycheck.

Chair-elect Erin Heath added, as a closing question to the discussion, “What is being done to
prevent this confusion and frustration from happening again in 11 years? What can we do and
how can we help?” Horstman said that while today is not the day to make that decision, he would
say that during this fiscal year, there will be an opportunity to discuss implementing a plan for
the next occurence of 27 pay periods. He said he believes that President Gabel would be open to
having that discussion and looking at what is possible.

Noonan asked if OHR would consider any semi-cost-neutral solutions for P&A employees.
Noonan said two ideas that employees have proposed include one extra personal holiday and
informal use of flex time. Horstman said that one of the benefits of being an exempt employee is
that adjusted schedules is already an expectation of this type of contract. Noonan added that what
would be helpful, to that end, is clear guidance to HR unit leads, chiefs of staff, and supervisors
that makes it very clear that the adjustments to schedules should be allowed. Horstman said OHR
would look at communications and supervisor training language to support people in supervisory
roles supporting reasonable flexibility in scheduling. Noonan then thanked Horstman and Kucera
for their time, and they left the meeting.

7. 27 Pay Period Resolution Discussion
Noonan then moved on to a brief explanation of how the 27 Pay Period Resolution came about
and invited Farrell to continue the conversation. Farrell said she wanted to make it very clear that
with the resolution, the work group was not asking for the University to make additional
payments to P&A employees. The resolution asks only that:
e The University acknowledges that the paycheck reduction creates hardship for some
employees.


https://docs.google.com/document/d/1TCsFdXnzZO0orl_tXWNj5zfN5OHIlRDV9C6s_E48Mhs/edit?usp=sharing

e Additional communication be sent out to P&A employees that includes a widget or other
tool for estimating their take home pay. The P&A 27 Pay Period Subcommittee
volunteers to review and offer feedback on future communications.

e The University considers cost-neutral alternatives to address this issue, such as awarding
additional flex time or personal holidays to affected employees.

e Going forward, as University operations return to normal and our financial picture
improves, P&A Senate representatives would like to be included in a conversation about
how to approach 27 pay period fiscal years more equitably so that P&A employees,
postdocs, and faculty are not the only employee classes at the University of Minnesota
receiving smaller paychecks.

A lengthy and robust discussion followed. Noonan summarized:
o Where the workgroup has landed makes sense; no one is demanding additional pay and
that is appropriate in light of COVID-19.
e The concerns from constituents center on communication, transparency, and not having
been part of the planning or decision-making process.
e There is a lack of common ground on the facts of the situation (for example, what
constitutes a fiscal year, an appointment year, a payroll year)

Noonan said she believes this is the right time to advocate for better communication and future
involvement of P&A staff in planning and decision making, but it is not the right time to
advocate for additional pay. Noonan added she would be interested to see intentional guidance
and messaging from OHR that makes it very clear to supervisors that contracted P&A employees
have flex time and should be allowed to use it.

A discussion followed as to the appropriateness of raising this issue with administration now,
given the impacts COVID-19 is having on the University’s financial situation. While opinions
varied greatly, Farrell noted that the reason this resolution was being put forward at this time was
so that it would be documented, the next time the 27 pay period occurs, that the P&A Senate and
leadership had discussed it, shared their constituents concerns with OHR, and asked for explicit
steps moving forward.

Noonan thanked the senate members for engaging so strongly around this issue. She then
requested an informal poll (using the Zoom yes/no feature) to answer the following question:
“Should the P&A Senate revisit this issue at its May 15, 2020, meeting?”

Informal voting took place and 54 senators voted to revisit the resolution again at the May
meeting, and three voted against it.

Farrell outlined the changes to the resolution document she understood the senate members to be
requesting:

e Remove the cost neutral options language

e C(Clarify the use of the terms pay cuts versus paycheck reductions



Noonan thanked the work group for its efforts and said that revisions to the resolution will be an
agenda item on both the May 9, 2020, PACC agenda and the May 15, 2020, P&A Senate agenda.

In the interest of time Noonan adjourned the meeting.

Geanette Poole
University Senate Office



